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Independent Auditor’s Report on Annual Financial Information of the Company

To the Board of Directors of GMR KRISHNAGIRI SIR LIMITED

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying statement of annual financial information (‘the Statement’) of
M/s. GMR Krishnagiri SIR Limited {the “Company”) for the year ended 31 March 2020 prepared by
1 the Company’s management to assist the management of the Holding Company in the preparation
' of its consolidated financial results for the year ended 31 March 2020 pursuant to the requirements

SEBI (Listing Obligations and DiscIosu're;Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (as amended) (“Listing
Regulations’), including relevant circulars issued by the SEBI from time to time.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
Statement:

presents financial results in accordance with the requirements of Regulation 33 of the Listing
Regulations: and

gives a true and fair view in conformity with the applicable Indian Accounting Standards (‘Ind AS)
prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’), read with relevant rules issued
thereunder, and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the net loss after tax and
other comprehensive income and other financial information of the Company for the year ended 31
March 2020. '

Basis for Opinion

Emphasis of Matiers:

We draw attention to Note no, 30 of the standalone financial statements, as regards the
management's evaluation of COVID-19 impact on the future performance of the Company.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements is not modified in respect of the above matters.
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Management Responsibilities for the Statement

This Statement has been prepared on the basis of the annual audited financial statements, The
Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of the Statement
that gives a true and fair view of the net profit/loss and other comprehensive income and other
financial information of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, including Ind AS prescribed under Section 133 of the Act, read with relevant rules
issued thereunder and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, and in compliance
with Regulation 33 of the Listing Regulations. This responsibility also includes maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection
and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Statement that gives a true
and fair view and is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Statement, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern, and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the
Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Statement

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Statement as a whole is free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with Standards on Auditing, specified under section 143(10) of
the Act, will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of this Statement.

As part of an audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing, we exercise professional judgment
and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Statement, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3) (i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has in place an adequate internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and the operating effectiveness of such controls.
Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
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concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the Statement or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue
as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Statement, including the disclosures,
and whether the Statement represents the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

Other Matter(s)

The Statement includes the financial information for the quarter ended 31 March 2020, being the
balancing figures between the audited figures in respect of the full financial year and the unaudited
year-to-date figures up to the third quarter of the current financial year, which were subject to
limited review by us.

Restriction on distribution or use

The Statement has been prepared by the Company’s Management to assist the management of the
Holding Company in the preparation of its consolidated financial results for the year ended 31
March 2020 pursuant to the requirements of SEBI circular no. CIR/CFD/CMD1/44/2019 dated 29
March 2019 read with Regulation 33 of the Listing Regulations, including relevant circulars issued
by the SEBI from time to time, and therefore, it may not be suitable for any other purpose. This
report is issued solely for the aforementioned purpose and for the use of the group auditors, M/s
Walker Chandiok & Co LLP, in their audit of consolidated financial statements of the Holding
Cormapany, and accordingly should not be used, referred to or distributed for any other purpose or
to any other party without our prior written consent. Further, we do not accept or assume any
liability or any duty of care for any other purpose for which or to any other person to whom this
report is shown or into whose hands it may come without our prior consent in writing.

For Brahmayya & Co.,
Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm registration no: 0005155

G. Srinivas

Place: Bengaluru Partner

Date: 6 june, 2020 Membership number: 086761
UUDIN: 20086761AAAAAZ3764
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF GMR KRISHNAGIRI SIR LIMITED
(FORMERLY, GMR KRISHNAGIRI SEZ LIMITED)

Report on the Ind AS Financial Statements

Opinion

1. We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of M/s. GMR Krishnagiri
SIR Limited (the “Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 315 March, 2020,
the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of
Cash Flow for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a
summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.
(hereinafter referred to as “Ind AS financial statements”).

2. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2020 give the
information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in
conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs
of the company as at 315t March, 2020, and loss, changes in equity and its cash flows for the

year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion:

3. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified
under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Ind AS
financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have

obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Emphasis of Matters:

4. We draw attention to Note no. 30 of the Ind AS financial statements, as regards the

management’s evaluation of COVID-19 impact on the future performance of the Company.

Our opinion on the Ind AS financial statements is not modified in respect of the above

matter.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

5. The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the [information included in the annual report, but does not include
the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.]

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

if, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s Responsibility for the Ind AS Financial Statements:

6. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”} with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS
financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial
performance, changes in equity and cash flows in accordance with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (ind AS)
specified under section 133 of the Act read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities;
selection and application of appropriate a.ccounting policies; making judgements and

- estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance
of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free

from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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7. In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management
either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic

alternative but to do so.

8. The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial

reporting process.

Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements:

9. Qur objectives are to obtzin reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements,
as a whole, are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of

these financial statements.

10. As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain

professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

i. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of

internal control.

ii. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143{3)(i)
of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on
whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and

the operating effectiveness of such controls.

iii. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of

accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.
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iv. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause

the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

v. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the

underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

11. We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the

12.

13.

‘planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any

significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with

them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our

‘. independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in
our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to

outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements:

14,

As required by the Companies {Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued'by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub section (11} of section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013, we give in “Annexure - A” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3

and 4 of the Order, to the extend applicable.
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15. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a} We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of

our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the

Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

¢) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss {Including Other Comprehensive
Income), Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by

this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

d] In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended.

e) On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on 31st March
2020 taken on record by the board of directors, none of the directors are disqualified as
on 31st March, 2020 from being appointed as directors in terms of section 164{2) of the

- Act.

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to
_financial statements of the Campany and the operating effectiveness of such controls,
refer to our separate report in “Annexure B”. Our report expresses an unmeodified
opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal

financials controls with reference to financial statements.

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with Rule 11' of the Companies {Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our
opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us:

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its

financial position;

ii. The Company did not have long-term contracts including derivative contracts for

which there were any material foreseeable losses;

4 5
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iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor

Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

For Brahmayya & Co,,
Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm registration no: 0005158

A

Gx. Srinivas
Place: Bengaluru : Partner
‘Date: June 6, 2020 Membership number: 086761

UDIN: 20086761AAAAAY5592
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Annexure - A to the Independent Auditors’ Report

The Annexure referred to in Independent Auditors’ Report to the members of the Company on
the financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2020 we report that:

{i) | In respect of the Company’s fixed assets

(a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(b} The Company has a program of verification to cover all the items Property, Plant
and Equipment of in a phased manner which, in our opinion, is reasonable having
regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. Pursuant to the
program, certain fixed assets were physically verified by the management during
the year. According to the information and explanations given to us, noe material
discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the title deeds of immovable
properties are held in the name of the Company.

(ii)  The activities of the company did not involve purchase of any inventory or sale of goods
' during the year, and accordingly Clause(ii) of Paragraph 3 of the Order is not apphcabie
to the company for the year.

(iif) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted
any loans, secured or unsecured, to any company, firm, Limited Liability Partnership or
other parties listed in the register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act,
2013 ('the Act’). Accordingly, clauses from (iii) (a} to (iii) (c) of paragraph 3 of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

(iv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has no loans, investments, guarantee and security which meets the
requirements of section 185 and 186 of the Act.

(v) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
accepted deposits within the meaning of Section 73 to 76 of the Act and the Companies
(Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly, the provisions of the
clause 3 (v} of the Order are not applicable.

(vi) The Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under
section 148(1) of the Act, for any of the services rendered by the company.

(vii) a) Undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employees’ state insurance,
income tax, sales tax, service tax, value added tax, goods and service tax, customs duty,
excise duty, Goods and Service Tax, cess and other material statutory dues applicable to
it have generally been regularly deposited with the appropriate authorities.

b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there were no undisputed
statutory dues in respect of provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income tax,
sales tax, service tax, value added tax, goods and service tax, customs duty, excise duty,
cess and other material statutory dues which were outstanding, as at 31 March, 2020
for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

c) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues in

respect of Sales Tax, Income Tax, Customs Duty, Wealth Tax, Service Tax, Excise Duty,
Goods and Service Tax and Cess which have not been deposited on account of dispute.
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(viii) ~ The company have not taken any loans or borrowings from any financial institutions,
banks and Government. According to the information and explanations given by the
management, we are of the opinion that the Company has not issued any debentures
and neither defaulted in repayment of dues to the debentures holders during the year.

(ix) The Company did not raise any money by way of initial public offer or further public
offer (including debt instruments) and term loans during the year. Accordingly,
paragraph 3 {ix) of the Order is not applicable.

(x) According to the information and explanations given to us, no material fraud by the
Company or on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported
during the course of our audit.

{xi) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not paid/provided for
managerial remuneration to its Manager during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (xi)
of the Order is not applicable.

(xii}) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company is not a Nidhi company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not
applicable.

(xiii)  According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in
compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and details of such
transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the
applicable accounting standards.

(xiv)  According to the information and explanations give to us and based on our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment
or private placement of shares of fully or partly convertible debentures during the
year. '

(xv)  According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not entered into non-
cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him. Accordingly,
paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable.

{xvi)  The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank
of India Act 1934.

For Brahmayya & Co.,
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm registration no: 000515S

—Geb—r

G. Srinivas
Place: Bengaluru - Partner

Date: June 6, 2020 Membership number: 086761
UDIN: 20086761AAAAAYS592
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Annexure - B to the Independent Auditors’ Report

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143
of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of GMR
Krishnagiri SIR LTD {“the Company”) as at 31 March, 2020 in conjunction with our audit of the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control with reference to financial statements criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (‘1CAI'). These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance
with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the
“Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed
under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of
internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements was
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system with reference to financial statements and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system with reference
to financial statements. .

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements.

A company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of the financial reporting and
the preparation of Ind AS financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control with reference
to financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that
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(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and
that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
‘authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition:of the company's assets that could have a material effect

on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial

statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,

material misstatements due to error er fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections

of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to

future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to

financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the
degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in allmaterial respects, an adequate internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements were operating effectively as at 31 March 2020, based on the internal
control with reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal éontrol stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India.

For Brahmayya & Co.,
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm registration no: 0005158

=GN
G. Srinivas
Place: Bengaluru Partner
Date: June 6, 2020 Membership number: 086761
UDIN: 20086761AAAAAY5592
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GMR Krishnagiri SIR Limited
{Formerly GMR Erishnagirl SEZ Limited)

Statement of Assers and Liabilities

{ Amannt 1 Bs)

ey CUrren 3y

Livtureed tax asse
Uither noncurtent assers
Tota! Non-Current Assers (1)

b} Cusrrens assers
Iaventiies
Finangiad assets
Cash and cash epabalents
Oither fnaneiad asstis
Exher curyeny assues
Totat Current Assuts (b)

: TOTAL ASSETS {ath)
z EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
@) Equity

iopiry share

Orber eyouy
Teral eqnity {w)

) Non-curront abilites
Hipanciil b :

Torrowngs
Onthier Francia! Hebitinies
Peovistons
Total Nen-curcent Borrosdings (b)
<} Current liabilities
Fananceal linbitites

Barrowmps

“Trade B los
Cuher 4

Other cuprens tabi

Hities

Provisions
{uvres s Provisiong
Towd Current botrowings (c)

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES (a+b+c)

Particulaes As ar Murch 3, 2020 As ai March 31, 2019
{Audited) fAudited}
i ASSEYS
4) Non-current assels
Prepony, plast and coguipnwan EERILAATH
Tavestment propenty wnider sonstosa s BT192
¢ sher bl assor 105,435
Imanuial axgets
FLevanswand advances . 4 4 26,469,300

PR
a2, 14621 H5,1557.305
70191,75,248 6,52,52,83,161
5379250 16,33,539
33.48,908 1648501
13.99,66% 93347058
580127013 .65, 70,4148
TALTI00 161 6,42,19,53,207

LID0 L A7 5000400
(5,68,72.839 (247190065
1,11,81,27,161 1,15,02,80,964
3546220041 RSP ES)
230A097.350 -
4342870 43,401.992
§,86,67,01,170 3,38.88,65,936
R e o) -3.52,372
55210423
26708010
YINE6T 3,10042
9,23,76,830 1,8%,28,06,309
77,719,161 6,42,19,53,20%

A s our repant af evendate

For Boabmayya & Co.
Firin Regatoation Nog (03138
Chactercd Accountonts

..y

G, Sehivas:
Paruser
Menmibeeship Number; 986761

Place : Bengalugu
Darer Gth June, 2020

For and on behadf ol the board of diregtoms of

GMR Krishiagini STR Limired

BYN Rao " Mohanvao M
Birector Divector
DN QU0BL1E7 N 02506274

Govind Bhar P:dgm—

Company Seerotay Chief Fmanoal Ofncer

Place: 'C'!;ennai
Date: 6th June, 2020



GMR Krishnagiri SIR Limited
{Formerly GMR Krishnagiri SEZ Limited)
Balance Sheet as at 3lst March 2020

Amount in INR

Particulars

I ASSETS

{1) Mon-current assets
{2y Property, Plant and Squinmeat
{b} Investmant Property under construction
{¢) QOther Intangible Assets
{d} Financial Assets
(i Loans & Advance
r (e} Other non-current assets
(T} Man Current taxes
(g) Deferred tax asset (net)

v

{2) Current assets
{a) Financial Assetis
{1} Cash and cash equivalents
(i} Other finandat assets
(B} Other current assels

Totat Assoets

XX EQUITY AND LTABILITIES
{1} Equity
(&) Equity Share capital
(b} Other Equity

LIABILITIES
{2) Non-current labifities
(a} Financial Lisbilities
{1} Barrawings
(i) Dther financial liabilities
th) Provisicns

{3) Current liabilitiey
{a) Financial Liabilities
{1} Trade Pavables
{#iy Other financial Habilities
{b} Cther current Habitities
(¢} Provisions

Total Equity and Liabilities

The accompanying notes 1 o 34 are an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our report of even date

For Bralunayya & Co.,
Firn Registration 8ot GS155
Chartered Acoountants,

G. Srinivas
Parimer
Membership Nuniber: 086781

Place; Bengalura
Diate: 6th hune, 2020

Ghartered %

@ pecountants

Notes As at As at

3ist March 2020 - 31sk March 2018
3 26,37,374 34,10,931
4 5,90,68,41,223 €,31,23,87,192
5 44,125 1,05,438
6 16,69,100 24,450,730
7 10,82,14,621 ! 68,000,395
8 4,587,508 52,292
8 2,77,187 2,77,187
g 5,32,79,256 16,33,559
& 33,48,988 16,48,501
7 13,99,660 9,33,87,988
7,07,71,99,161 6,42,19,53,269
10 1,17,50,60,000 1,17,50,00,008
1% -5,68,72,839 -2,47,19,038
12 3,54,62,20,944 3,38,44,04,044

14 2,31,60,87.350 -
16 43,82.875 44,60.952
13 94,72,429 43,52,572
14 5,52,10,523 1.84.63,34.854
t5 2,67.08,010 3,14,07,541
14 9,79.867 5.10,942

7.87,71,.99 164

542,18 53 200

For and orsbehalf of the board-of directors of
GMR Krishnagiri $TR Limied

| JHy,

Mohanrag M
Diffector

BVN Rag
Director
DIN M051167

TRy Kumar jain
Company Secretary

Phace : Chennai
Drite: 6th Judie, 202¢

Govind Bh

T0607E

at Padya ,
cials Officer

?\W/-Q"
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GMR Krishnagiri SIR Limited

(Formerly GMR Krishnagiri SEZ Limited)

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March 2020

Amount in INR

Particulars

I REVENUE
Revenue From Qperations
QOther Income
Total Revenue (1}

I1 EXPENSES
Emplovee Benefits Expense
Finance Costs
Other Expenses
Total expenses {II)

T1iX Profit before exceptional items and tax (1-11)
IV Exceptionat Items

V Profit/(toss) before tax (III-IV)
VI Tax expense.
{1} Current Tax
{2} adiustments of tax relating to earlier vear
{3} Deferred Tax

VIX Profit/{loss) for the period (V-V}
VIII Cther Comprehensive Income
loss
or loss %

plans
Income tax effect

VI

Tnrome for the nernd)

X Earnings per equity share:
{1} Basic

2] Diluted

Ag per our report of even date

For Brahmayya & Co,,
Firm Registration No: 0005158
Charteved Accountants

Tt
{5, Srinivas

Partner _ _
Membership Number; 056761

Place : Bengalura
Date: 6ih June, 2020

A& Itemsthat will be reclassified to profit or

B Ttems that will not be reclassified to profit

Re-measuremeant gains {losses) on defined benefit

IX Total Comprehensive Income for the period {VII +

{Comprising Profit (Loss) and Other Comprehensive

. Motes

For the year ended ~ For the year ended
31 March 2020 31 March 2619
17 63.13.861 12,884,791
63,113,861 12,84,791
18 25,18,552 51,75.846
18 22,90,398 8,890
20 2,73,32,116 2.31,04,542
3,21,41,057 2,82,89,278
-2,58,27,205 -2,70,04,487
-2,58,27,205 -2,70,04,487
27,800 .
- 96,370
-2,58,54,805 -2,71,00,857
-2,58,54,805 -2,71,00,857
-0.22 -0.23
. 'Q‘zz “0-23

The accompany ing notes 1 ko 31 are anintegral part of the financial statements,

For and on bebaif of the board of directors of
GMR Krishnagiri SIR Limited

S g7yt sl

BVN Rao Mohanzae M
Director Digector
DIN 0051167 302506274
L
Sanjay Kumar Jain Govind Bhat Pad;

Company Secretary

Place : Chennai
Date; 6th June, 2020

Chief Financials Officer




GMR Krishnagiri SIR Limited
{Formerly GMR Krishnagied SEZ Limited}
Statemernt of cash flows for the year ended 31 HMarch 2020

Ampuni i IRA

Particutars

L Casty flow fram pperating ootivitias:

A Peofl bafure toy

8 Adjustment for pon-cash bamsacions,
2. Depraciution and smortieation srpznzes
b, iavestent WP written off

& Adiushment for vvesting and financing notivities:

inzerest intume earned

intarest Sipehss - falr vakee sdiustment

T . ¥
o Adfastirent for changes in agrkisg copital:
2 sase [ [increage) in other financial assets

b, Decrease / (increase) in other current assees
iDecrease} fincrease in trade payablss
iDecrease} fincrezse bn other non currant financial Habdites
ccredse) /lncrease inother Foancial fabilitias
(ecrease} fincrsase iy othai rrent iabities
. {Decraase} Jinciease In provisions

e

oo

. Cosh genzrated from Bpé_[{_](_.‘aﬂ;{As‘ﬁ'er
Less: Birecttaxes paid {net of refunds}

Net cosh flow from operating cetivities 7}

i Cash flows fronvinvesting activitios
2. Purchiss of propanty, plent and squipment, investment properly

b Szl prageeds from diSposat of property, plont and exuipraent

<. Payments to rapital zreditors, other non-current sesets inet of written off's|
4. Lozus{given to}f repaid by cthars

2. Procends frors ssf of carint Investinents

f. Interest Inmome received

Net cash fiow fromy/ {vsed in) tnvesting aciivities (1}

f#h Losh flows from financing octivities
3 Proceedsfrom borrowings
b Regayment of borrowings.
e Interast paic
Net cash: flow fused in} finoricihg activities (1)}

V. Nel {decregse} in cashand cosh equivalents i+ i+ 41}
Cash and ash oquivalents 38 the bedinning of the.year
£ash ane cash equivalents acquired through marger

V. Cash ond cosh oquivolents at the end of the yeor

V. Components.of cosh aod cash equivalents:
4. Cashon hand
b, Chagues; Drafts apd Stamps on hand
e. - With baris:
i On Curcent Actodnt
i, OnDepositactount having eriginat maturity tess than tree months
Toral cash avd cash equivalents

Far the yedr
ended March 31,
12020

For the year
anded March 21,

2019

{2.70,06.487}

547 0% 854 1,78,00,608
247,048,634 1,78,02,603
i40.66.599) {62,83,814}
{20,08,599} {g2,53,014}
117,00,487} {1,08,000}
1,08,51,622) 58,27,5067
51,19,857 -
LA5,50.00,000 -
i41,53,12,820) {5,68,98,160)
{35,29,983 5,28 914
390,300 {84.45,359)
1,02,27,45,806 (5,24,39,638)
1,01,75,87,035% (6,79,24,536)
14,35,308) {10,79,388)
1,01,71,54,729 (5,90,03.922}
{39,07,84,462) (60,87,69,323)
12,47,04,8241 10374077
{2,28,370)
161,57,17,472} 158,83,85,255)
16,12,34,137 84,18,63,893
i51,25,02,697} -
{34,57,38,560) 54,18,63,944
5,16,45,697 {1,55,35,234)
15,33,559 1.71.68,793
5,32,79,256 15,33,539
54,929 151,592
£,32,27,317 13,381,967
5,32,79,256 16,33,559

Notes:

1. The sbove cashilow statement has been prepsrad yndar the indirect Methed® 25 st outin the IND AS - 7 on coshfow staterents as

referred to in section 133 of the Compantes Act, 2013,

2. The shove tashBowy stetement has baen cempiied from and i Fased on the Balance Sheat as ot March 21, 2020 and the reloted statement

of profitand loss forthe vear andad on that date.

Az por our report el even sditte

for Brahmayya & Co.;
Firm Registratton No: G515
Clhartered Avopentats

e

G, Srinivas
Pariper
Ateniberstup Numben G8670E

" B¥N Rao
Birevior
DL N0051I8T

San Iy Raimir Jain:

Flace: Bong!alu:ﬁ
Sate fth June, 2020

Cumpany Rorelasy

Placa : Clennai
akes fth Jene, 2020

For and 'an bahalf of the boart of direcisns of
GMR Krishpagin SIR Limited
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GMR Krishnagiri SIR Limited
(Formerly GMR Krishnagiri SEZ Limited)

Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 March 2020

(Amounts in INR, unless otherwise stated)

Attributable to the equity holders of the parent

Reserves and surplus

{ssued capital

Equity
component of
loans

Retained earnings

Total

Total equity

AL 31 March 2018

Profit for the period
Fair Valuation of corporatee Guarantee

At 31 March 2019

Profit for the period

1,17,50,00,000

o }o...127,50,00,000 |

18,15,68,508

13,68,508 |

.17,29,03,673

~2,71,00,857

....762,83,014 ;

1,18,36,64,835
R -N,wp_oo..mmw .

.. 1,15,02,80,964

62,8314

Joon 118,36,64,835 |

. 7271,00,857

-62,83,014

..1,15,02,80,964

R - -2,58,54,805 -2,58,54,805 -2,58,54,805
Fair Valuation of corporatee Guarantee - - -62,98,997 | -62,98 997 -62,98.997
At 31 March 2020 1,17,50,00,000 | 18,15,58,508 -23,84,41,347 1,11,81,27,161 1,11,81,27,161

hy \J
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D. Lozn tzken i L5 relundable / Gther lga s, Debenture;

3 intain Head o sk Head BPCIGAAP GL Fqulty Lomponent éf. BPC
5 i s | N e Telated Eaity boarid . [
debenture/ Puf Sharg
1 [ L0 ture Limited Daent nter eorporate laans and deposits | ELIMT#PO04 12200000 14,20,00,000
2 ) sspHe {1 £5131 |GMRSEZ & ot Moldings timites Logn - 1ED Ieter cocpoeate loans nd depasis | ELIMTYPO 52,0600 210000
G MR Tamizaram Tindisanam Expressways
3§ GeL §1exag fuimied igan - 10D i irter. ot 3wl deporsits | ELIMT YPES 2005500000
4| GMBHL 31 £3500 FGMR Hituas Limited Loen - 1CD Lerg lem b Inter carperaze loors and cepcnita | ELIMTYRRY 930300500, 1P 51,01.53.831 7075383
5 HFEF 1 ES520 | liecwy Aower Estates Private Limited toan - ICO Looy L L o INter Consarate 1oans ard d=poail IMTYPCA STOL00300, AP 1.69,50,000 N 1,39.53,000
6 Gh_ [ esroa |G imited (= Leesd evn borrowings Inter corporate oans and n=pesils |4 MTYPEL o130 08 0.29.27,113 70297013
7 5
g |
F) I
- n Fa,
-| Wuin Haad © : . Sub Head* N Lo I€_ELIM/ PLUG BPEIGARP GL- ' . | 1GAAP Amount EBPCIND AS GL Uton Equity Cx DIL reversed via Total{ IGAAR +IND.
: S - o L Hotignal interest: " Adjustingiits)

. [Teansaction Deicriptian G Heag o ek Head TEauhy Component ot Oeferved Tax ga.
Snare cagitsl sues Enuicy ELIMIYPOa 117 50,0000
Eauily sompenentof Related -
trer equity Gther enuity Party tosns fureRes 210200310.10P aznzzoNe 181565508 1815 63,508
3
G. sqmpany dir i 1 loansf debenture pre! share{ linencin| puarantes)
G ks,
SINe ) Short: 1€ fou | Main Head a KC_ELIN PLUG AP IND AS GL "1 Totat felaf ind AS.
: : : ;o preterenes sty Aty
deieriivaf Lanst . i

i
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A. Rotelvable / Reigjhursement

Reloted Party Transaction Detalls
For the year ended March 31, 2020
Balance Sheet
MR Krlshnagle] SIR Limbted
Comgany Catte ES500

Infs.
251 Ne | -shay ¢ Transation Deseription” - ek cedeiii ) [Maln Head o 2.0 e |G EL AARGL 7 o - L IGAAR Amiounk 168 AS adjostrhent Amaunk
1 GSPUL_ {1 EB121 {GMR SEZ & Port Holdings Limited Ruimlrucesement of Eapenses Other Current assets - |Cther recoverabies ELIMTYPOL 120402220.INP 17,99.381 17,.99,381
2 | GEOKNU | GEOKNO |GEOKNG Indis Private Limited Reimburesement of £apenses Other Curtent assets Other retoverables ELIMTYROL 120402220.INF 498,342 e 4,96,142
3 GIL___| 1 EBI00 {GMR Infrastructure Linited Reitnburesement of Eapenses Other Currem assets Qther recoverables ELIMTYPOL 120402220, IHP 6,00,830 500230
A GkEL |1 k2160 |G Rajabmundry Energy Limited i of Expenses Other Carrant assets Other racounrables ELIMTYFO] 120402220 INP 9,148,777 9,148,777
5 ¥ T .
Pavable / Trade payable / Retenton payable f Deposits rggeived / Intarast payable .
In Rs,
5l Ma: | Shoft "] 1C Codde: [Company name - Transac 6l Codg 7 o Sub Hand e BUM/ Fie i TapEiGARE 6L it |12 BPC ING AS GL g R - | Total [ IGAAP ¥IND
: Code : . : ; S v : G Sl LRI as adjustments)
Interest payable on Inter - ==
Other financial Balullties Won |corparate loans and deposits Men i
13 GIL 1_E&100 [GMR [nfs Limited Interest accured- D current Urnes ELIMTVPOZ 310700190.P 13,50,53,240 S - 13,50,53, 240
TATCTEsT pay; TATeT
GMR Tambaram Tindivanam Exprissways ther financial labilies Hon| corporate Ioans and deposits Nan .
2 GUIEL | 1£3110 |Limited Interest accured-10 evnrent cunrent ELIMTYPOZ 310700190, NP 60,36,06,403 501,46,06,803
Qthér Financial lizbilitles Tnterest accrued on Inter SN
3 GIL i LEGI90 |GMR Infrastructure Limitedt Interest accured-Debenturgs. rent corporate loans and deposits ELIMTYPO2 326800200, INF 1,70,69,594 1,76,68.598
Tnterest payabls on Inter I
Other financiat fabilitles Mo | corporata laans and deposits Non
4| GMRHL } 1 E3300 [SMA Highways Linited Intarest accured-ICO turrent current ELMTYPOR 310700150, 1P 12,74,37,307 12,74,37,307
Other Tinanclal iabilitics | Interest accrued an Inter
s HFEPL | I_ES523 | Money Flower Estates Private Limired Interest accured-ICD Current corpotate laans and deposits. ELTYPO2 3208002004p 21,24,03 ; 2L.24.303
Other flnancial liabilities Inerest aocrued on Inter R
5 GSPHL | | EG121 |GIR SEZ & Port Holdings Limited Interest aceured4CD Curent carporate toans and deposits ELIMTYPO2 320800200.INP 64580 : 64,530
Other financial abililes [Interest accrued on fnter . R
7 RAXA | {1 EECCO | Raxa Securily Services Limited Lerest acerued-50 Current corporate leans and deposits ELIMTYPOZ INP 4,593,601 b B 4,549,601
Other financlal liabilities Non | Security depos i fromn Relaled
S AAXA_F1_EBOOO |Raxa Security Services Limited Security Duposit Received current panties EWITYPOY 320800250.INP 1,45,00,00,000 i 1,45,00,00,000
9 G -
10 -
1 3 ‘
12 | 7 .
Loan glyen to gr: £ Shagp i mgpey f Other adyanca: .,
- i In Rs.
81 Ma| “Shart i 1e Code: | Compuny name. S sl Head o I RUNE PLUG BRCIGARRGL i L. BPLIND ASGL Investmant In Equing:ii Hotlonial intarest LU ToYAl net of Ind AS
“Codé ; ey SR S R e T orion of elated party experss accried il Ajustmencs)
i : e B : 2 s loaris / debentiive Other, B 1 dite . B g
- RIS Z JAin AT o i
1
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Refated Party Transaction Details
For the year ended March 31, 2020
Transaction for the period

GIMR Krishnagiri 51R Limited

Company Code ESS00

All the transaction during th period {loan taken/ Joan given/ security deposit given/ security deposit taken/ SAM refundead/ SAM taken)

Int Rs.
A
1IGTTEL i F33110 GMR Tambaram Tindivanam Expressways Limited interest on Loan 22,15,40,301
rALcHR P E6100 GIMR Infrastructure Limited Reimbursement paid 64,31,778
31GiL t_E61Q0 QMR Infrastructure Limited interest on Loan 7,62,23,524
alGiL I EG100 GMR Infrastructure Limited Deb_entt;re interest 1,50,86,685
S{GIL 1 EGIOC GMR infrastruciure Limited Loan taken 15,84,66,000
5]GMRHL I E3300 GMR Highways Limited Interest on Loan 8,23,92,460
71GSPHL | E6121 GMR SEZ & Port Hotdiings Limitad Reimbursement received 54,62,287
BIGSPHL {_EA121 GMR SEZ & Port Holdings Limited Interest on Loan 21,21,935
SiGSPHL | E6121 GIMR SEZ & Port Holdings Limited Loan taken 6,14,00,000
10[GSPHL 1-£6121 GMR.SEZ & Port Holdings Limited Loan Refunded 5,83,00,000
11{RAXA i EZ00O Raxa Security Services Limited Security charges -+ 32,39,045
12| RAXA § E800C0 Raxa Security Services Limited Interest on security deposit 13.,06,21,328
13| HFERL E_E552% Honey Fower Estates Private Limited Interest on {.oan 15,03,919
14| HFEPL [_E5529 Honey Flower Estates Private Limited Loan taken 72,000,000
15|HFEPL |_E352% Honey Flower Estates Private Limited Loan Refunded 55,50,000
15|RPPL | E5525 Radhapriva Properties Private Limited Reimbursernent paid 1,600
17|GVF GVF GMR Varalakshmi Foundation CSR Activities 9,086,214
18{GCAPL |_E6610 GMR Corporate Affairs Private Limited Reimbursement paid 2,89,100
19iCPEL 1_ES505 Camelta Progertles Private Limitad Reimbursement paid 5,000
20IAPPL | E5501. Advika Properties Private Limited Reimbursement paid 585
21iAMPREL | _E5503 Amartys Properties Private Limited Reimbursement paid 31
22| RAXA | EZ00D Rasa-Security Services Limited Secyrity Deposit received 1,45,00,00,0600
23
24
25
26
27

For Brahmayya & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm registration number

G Srinivas
Partner
Membership No. 086761

Place : 2angalore
Cate: 06-06-2020

b
AT
o artered (

0005155

For and on'behaif of the Board of Directors

GMR Krishinagiri SIR Lim

ahbnrat vt
Director

-
Sanjaﬁar Jain

Company Sacretary
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GMR Krishnagiri SIR Limited
{formerly known as GMR Krishnagiri SEZ Limited)

Notes to Accounts

1. - Corporate information

Tamil Nadu Industrial Development Corporation Limited {(TIDCO), through international
competitive bidding has selected GMR Infrastructure Limited (GIL} as Joint Venture Partner
to develop a Multi-product Special Economic Zone (SEZ) in Krishnagiri District of Tamil Nadu,
India. A Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) was entered in to with TIDCO on August 6,
2007. GIL has incorporated GMR Krishnagiri SEZ Ltd {(GKSEZ) on 24%™ September 2007 as its
- wholly owned subsidiary. Due to the changes in the industrial scenario, GKSEZ decided to
develop a Special Investment Region instead of the SEZ and received the approval from the
appropriate Government Authorities. The name of the company has been changed to GMR
Krishnagiri SIR Ltd on 05" January 2018. The company signed the Associate Sector Agreement
& Service Agreements with TIDCO in July 2019. The company is planning to create the
necessary infrastructure required for setting up of industries in the Regicn and thus
promoting the industrial growth and all round development of the region. The work of land
levelling, road, water facilities, power supply, street lighting, gardening etc are in progress.

The registered office of the company is located in Chennai, India.
Information on other related party redationships of the Company is provided in Note 25.

The financial statements were approved for issue in accordance with a resolution of the directors on
06.06.2020

2. Significant Accounting Policies

A. Basis of preparation

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards {Ind AS), under
the historical cost convention on the accrual basis except for certain financial instruments which are
measured at fair values, the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 (the ‘Act’} (to the extent notified). The
Ind AS are prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with Rule 3 of the Companies {Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and relevant amendment rules issued thereafter.

Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting standard
Is initially adopted or a revision to an existing accou nting standard requires a change in the accounting
policy hitherto in use.

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees {INR)}.
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B. Summary of significant accounting policies
a. Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current
classification. An asset is treated as current when it is;

i} Expected to be rezalised or intended to be soid or consumed in normal cperating cycle

ii) Held primarily for the purpose of trading .

'iii) Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

iv) Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liakility for
at least twelve months after the reporting period

All other assets are classified as non-current. A liability is current when it is:

i) Itis expected to be settled in normal cperating cycle

ji) Itis held primarily for the purpaose of trading
iii) Itis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or
iv) There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liabiiity for at least twelve

months after the reporting period

All other liabilities are classified as non-current, Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-
current assets and liabilities. The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for
processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents. The Company has identified twelve
months as its operating cycle.

b. Property, plant and equipment

On transition to Ind AS, the company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its
property, plant and equipment as at 31 March 2015, measured as per the previous GAAP and use that
carrying value as the deemed cost of the property, plant and equipment as on 1 April 2015,

Land is carried at historical cost. All other items of property, plant and equipment are stated at
historical cost less accumulated depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Capital work in progress includes cost of property, plant and equipment under installation/under
development as at the balance sheet date.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recdgnised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow
to the company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any
tomponent accounted for as a separate asset are derecognised when replaced. Further, when each
major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the item of property,

plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repa'frs 2
maintenance are charged to profit and [oss during the reporting period in which they are incury
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On Transition to Ind AS, the Company has availed the optional exemption on “Long term Foreign
currency Monetary items” and has accordingly continued with the policy to adjust the exchange
differences arising on translation/ settlement of long-term foreign currency monetary items
pertaining to the acquisition of a depreciable asset recognised in the financial statements for the
period ended 31 March 2016 { as per previous GAAP} to the cost of the tangible asset and depreciates
the same over the remaining life of the asset. In accordance with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs
(‘MCA’} circular dated August 09, 2012, exchange differences adjusted to the cost of tangible fixed
assets are total differences, arising on long-term foreign currency monetary items pertaining to the
acquisition of a depreciable asset, for the period. In other words, the Company does not differentiate
between exchange differences arising from foreign currency borrowings to the extent they are
regarded as an adjustment to the interest cost and other exchange differences.

Anitem of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or
loss arising on derecagnition of the asset {calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the statement of profit and loss when
the asset is derecognised.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, piant and equipment are
reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

c. Depreciation on Property, plant and equipment

Dépreciation on the Property plant and equipment is calculated on a straight-line basis using the rates
arrived at, based on useful lives estimated by the management, which coincides with the lives
prescribed under Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013 except for assets individually costing less
than Rs. 5,000 which are fully depreciated in the year of acquisition and certain items of building, plant
and equipment, the Company, based on technical assessment made by technical expert and
management estimate, believes that the useful lives of such assets are different from the useful life
prescribed in Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013. The management believes that these estimated
useful lives are realistic and reflect fair approximation of the period over which the assets are likely to
be used.

The Property, plant and equipment acquired under finance iease is depreciated over the asset’s useful
life or over the shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease term if there is no reasonable certainty
that the Company will obtain ownership at the end of lease term.

Depreciation on adjustments to the historical cost of the assets on account of foreign exchange
fluctuations is provided prospectively over the residual useful life of the asset,

d. Investment properties

Since there is no change in the functional currency, the Company has elected to continue with the
carrying value for all of its investment property as recognised in its Indian GAAP financial statemen
as deemed cost at the transition date, viz., 1 April 2015.
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Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are stated at cost less accumuiated depreciation and accumulated

_impairment loss, if any.

The cost includes the cost of replacing parts and borrowing costs for long-term construction projects
if the recognition criteria are met. When significant parts of the investment property are required to
bereplaced at intervals, the Company depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives,
All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred,

Though the Company measures investment property using cost based measurement, the fair value
of investment property is disclosed in the notes. Fair valyes are determined based on an annual
evaluation performed by an accredited external independent valuer applying a valuation model
recommended by the International Valuation Standards Committee.

Investment properties are derecognised either when they have been disposed of or when they are
permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected from their disposal,

The difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset is
recognised in profit or loss in the period of derecognition.

g. Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible
assets acquired in a business combination is thejr fair value at the date of acquisition. Following initial
recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses. Internally generated intangibles, excluding capitalised development costs, are nhot
capitalised and the related expenditure is reflected in profit or loss in the period in which the
expenditure is incurred. - .

Intangible assets include software etc and their useful lives are assessed as either finite or indefinite.

Research and development cost:

Research costs are expensed as incurred. Development expenditure incurred on an individual project
is recognised as an ‘intangible asset’ when alt of the below conditions are met:

I The technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will be avaitable for use
or sale

ii. The Company’s intention to complete the asset and use or sell it

iit. The Company has ability to use or sell the asset

iv. It can be demonstrated how the asset will generate probable future economic benefits

V. Adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the development and to use or
sell the asset are available, and

vi, The ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset during

development.
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f. Amortisation of intangible assets

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for
impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangibie asset may be impaired. The
amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are
reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the
expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are censidered
to modify the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting
estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in the
statement of profit and loss unless such expenditure forms part of carrying value of another asset.

Intangible assets (Software licences etc) are amortised over the useful life of 6 years as estimated by
the management,

£. " Borrowing cost

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised
as part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they
occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the
borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an
adjustment to the borrowing costs.

h. Leases

Company as a lessee:

Alease is classified at the inception date as a finance lease or an operating lease. A lease that transfers
substantially alf the risks and rewards incidental to ownership to the Company is classified as a finance
lease.

Finance leases are capitalised at the commencement of the lease at the inception date fair value of
“the leased property or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments. Lease payments
are apportioned between finahce charges and reduction of the lease liability so as to achieve a
constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liakility. Finance charges are recognised in
finance costs in the statement of profit and loss, unless they are directly attributable to qualifying
assets, in which case they are capitalized in accordance with the Company’s general policy on the
borrowing costs,

Contingent rentals are recognised as expenses in the periods in which they are incurred.

A leased asset is depreciated over the useful life of the asset. However, if there is no reasonable
certainty that the company will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term, the asset is depreciated
over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset and the lease term.
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i) another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern of the user’s benefit
even if the paymenits to the lessors are not on that basis; or

i) the payments to the lessor are structured to increase in line with expected general inflation
to compensate for the lessor’s expected inflationary cost increases. If payments to the tessor vary
because of factors other than general inflation, then this condition is not met,

Company as a lessor:

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of an
asset are classified as operating leases. Rental income from operating lease is recognised on a straight-
line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in'negotiating and arranging
an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease
term on the same basis as rental income.

Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in which they are earned.

Leases are classified as finance leases when substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership
transfer from the Group to the lessee. Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recorded
as receivables at the Group’s net investment in the leases. Finance lease income is allocated to
accounting periods so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of return an the net investment
outstanding in respect of the lease

i. Inventories
inventories are valued as follows:
Raw materials, components, stores and spares:

Raw materials, components, stores and spares are valued at lower of cost and net realisable value.
However, materials and other items held for use in the production of inventories are not written down

below cost if the finished products in which they will be incorporated are expected to be sold at or

- above cost. Cost is determined on a weighted average basis and includes all applicable costsin bringing
goods to their present locations and condition.

Contra ct work-in-progress:

Costs incurred that relate to future activities on the contract are recognised as contract work-in-
progress. Contract work-in-progress comprises of construction cost and other directly attributable
overheads and are measured at lower of cost and net realisable value.

Traded / Finished goods:

Traded goods are valued at lower of cost and net realisable value, Cost is determined on a weighted

average basis and includes all applicable costs incurred in bringing goods to their present location and
condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated
costs of completion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale.
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j. Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be
impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the
company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of
an asset’s or cash generating units’ (CGUs) net selling price and its value in use. The recoverable
amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are
largely independent of those from other assets or Company of assets. When the carrying amount of
an gsset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down
to its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, recent market transactions are taken into account,
if available. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used

Impairment losses of continuing operations, including impairment on inventories, are recognised in
the statement of profit and loss, except for properties previously revalued with the revaluation surplus
taken to OCI. For such properties, the impairment is recognised in OCl up to the amount of any
previous revaluation surplus. After impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised carrying
amount of the asset over its remaining useful life.

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether
there is an indication that previously recognised impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased.
i such indication exists, the Company estimates the asset’s or CGU’s recoverable amount. A previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to
determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The reversal
is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss
been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the statement of profit or
toss unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case, the reversal is treated as a
revaluation increase.

k. Provisions, Contingent liabiiities, Contingent assets, and Commitments

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (tegal or constructive) as a
result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation. When the Company expects some or all of a provision te be reimbursed, for example, under
an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only when the
reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement
of profit and loss net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a'current pre-tax
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Contingent liability is disclosed in the case of:

o A p'resent obligation arising from past events, when it is not probable that an outflow of
resources will not be required to settle the obligation '

* Apresent obligation arising from past events, when no reliable estimate is possible

* Apossible obligation arising from past events, unless the probability of outfow of resources
is remote

Commitments include the amount of purchase order {net of advances) issued to parties for
completion of assets

Provisions, contingent liabilities, contingent assets and commitments are reviewed at each balance
sheet date

L Retirement and other Employee Benefits

All employee benefits payable/available within twelve months of rendering the service are classified
as short-term employee benefits. Benefits such as salaries, wages and bonus etc., are recognised in
the statement of profit and loss in the period in which the employee renders the related service.

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund, pension fund, superannuation fund etc. are defined
contribution scheme, The Company has no obligation, other than the contribution payable.

The Company recognizes contribution payable as expenditure, when an employee renders the related
service. If the contribution payable to the scheme for service received before the reporting date
exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit payable to the scheme is recognized as a liability
after deducting the contribution already paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds the
contribution due for services received before the balance sheet date, then excess is recognized as an
asset to the extent that the pre-payment will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payment or a
cash refund.

The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plan is determined using the projected unit
credit method with actuarial valuations being carried out at each balance sheet date, which recognised
each period of service as giving rise to additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and measure
each unit separately to build up the final obligation.

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding
amounts included in net interest on the net defined henefit liability and the return on plan assets
{excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are recognised
immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through

OCl in the period in which they occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in
subsequent periods. Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss on the earlier of:

j] The date of the plan amendment or curtaiiment, and
ii) The date that the Company recognises related restructuring costs
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Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset. The
Company recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an expense in the
statement of profit and loss:

i) Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and lasses on
curtailments and non-routine settlements; and

if) Net interest expense or income

Long term employee benefits

Compensated absences which are not expected to oceur within twelve months after the end of the
period in which the employee renders the related services are recognised as a liability at the present
vatue of the defined benefit obligation at the balance shect date.

m. Financial Instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Alf financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded
at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the
financial asset. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame
established by regulatien ar conventian in the market place {regular way trades) are recognised on
the trade date, i.e., the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:

i) Debt instruments at amortised cost

ii) Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

i) Debt instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
v} Equity instrumeants measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

Debt instruments at amortised cost: A ‘debt instrurnent’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the
following conditions are met:

V) The asset is held within a business modei whose objective is to hold assets for collecting
contractual cash flows, and
vi) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solek
payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding. '
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This category is the most relevant to the Company. After initial measurement, such financial assets
are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees
or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance income in the
profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the profit or loss. This category
generally applies to trade and other receivables-

Debt instrument at FVTOCI: A ‘debt instrument’ is classified as at the FVTOC! if both of the following
criteria are met:

vii) The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and
selling the financial assets, and
viii) The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPi

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each
reporting date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income
(OCi). However, the Company recognizes interest income, impairment losses & reversals and foreign
exchange gain or loss in the P&L. On de-recognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously
recognised in OCl is reclassified from the equity to P&L. Interest earned whilst holding FVTOCI debt
instrument is reported as interest income using the EIR method.

Debt instrument at FVTPL: FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument,
which does not meet the criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOCLY, is classified as
‘at FVTPL.

In addition, the Company may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets amortized
cost or FVTOCI criteria, as at FVTPL. However, such election is allowed only if doing so reduces or
eliminates a measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as ‘accounting mismatch’). The
Company has not designated any debt instrument as at FVTPL. Debt instruments included within the
FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the P&L.

Equity investments: All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity
instruments which are held for trading and contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in a
business combination to which Ind AS103 applies are classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity
fnstruments, the Company may make an irrevocable election to present in other comprehensive
income subsequent changes in the fair value. The Company makes such election on an instrument-by-
instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.

i the company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on
the instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCI. There is no recycling of the amounts
from OCl to P&L, even on sale of investment. However, the company may transfer the cumulative gain
or loss within equity.
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Impairment of financial assets

Inaccordance with Ind AS 109, the company applies expected credit loss {ECL) model for measurement
and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk exposure:

ix) Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.q., loans, debt
securities, deposits, trade receivables and bank balance

x) Financial assets that are debt instruments and are measured as at FVTOC

xi) Lease receivables under Ind AS 17

Xii} Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that result

from transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 11 and Ind AS 18
Xifr) Loan commitmenis which are not measured as at FVTPL
xiv) Financial guarantee contracts which are not measured as at FYTPL

The company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on;

xv) Trade receivables or contract revenue receivables; and
Xvij All lease receivables resulting from transactions within the scope of Ind AS 17

The apptication of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk.
Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right
from its initial recognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the company
determines that whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial
recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for
impairment loss, However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in a
subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recognising impairment loss
allowance based on 12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected
life of a financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which results from
default events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the company in accerdance
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xvii} Al contractual terms of the financial instrument (including prepayment, extension, call and

similar options) over the expected life of the financial instrument. However, in rare cases when the
“expected life of the financial instrument cannot be estimated relfably, then the entity is required to use

the remaining contractual term of the financial instrument

xviii}  Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are in tegral to the

controctugl terms

As a practical expedient, the Company uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowance
on portfolio of its trade receivables. The provision matrix is based on its historically observed default
rates over the expected life of the trade receivables and is adjusted for forward-looking estimates. At
every reporting date, the historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-
looking estimates are analysed. On that basis, the Company estimates the following provision matrix
at the reporting date:

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as income/
expense in the statement of profit and loss (P&L}. This amount is reflected under the head ‘other
expenses’ in the P&L. The balance sheet presentation for various financial instruments is described
below:

Xix) Financial assets measured as af amortised cost, contractual revenue receivables and lease
receivables: ECL is presented as an alfowance, ie., as an integral part of the measurement of those
assets in the balance sheet. The allowance reduces the net carrying amount. Until the asset meets write-
off criteria, the company does not reduce fmpairment allowance from the gross carrving amount.

xx} Loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts: £CL is presented as a provision in the
balance sheet, i.e. as a liability. '

xxi) Debt instruments measured at FVTOCI Since financial assets are already reflected at fairvalue,
impairment affowance is not further reduced from its value. Rather, ECL amount is presented as
‘accumulated impairment amount’ in the OCI.

Forassessing increase in credit risk and impairment loss, the company combines financial instruments
on the basis of shared credit risk characteristics with the objective of facilitating an analysis that is
designed to enable significant increases in credit risk to be identified on a timely.basis.

- Financial liabilities
initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an
effective hedge, as appropriate.

Al financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and
payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Company's financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings includiy
bank overdrafts, financial guarantee contracts and derivative financial instruments."
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Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss :

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and
financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as heid for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing
in the near term. This category also includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the
Company that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind AS
109. Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated
as effective hedging instruments. Gains or losses on liabilitics held for trading are recognised in the
profit or foss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are
designated as such at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied.
For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes in own credit risk
are recognized in OCL These gains/ loss are not subsequently transferred to P&L. However, the
Company may transfer the cumulative gain or |oss within equity. All other changes in fair value of such
liability are recognised in the statement of profit or loss. The company has not designated any financial
liability as at fair value through profit and loss.

Loans and borrowings :

This is the category most relevant to the company. After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR

amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees
ot costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the
statement of profit and loss. This category generally applies to borrowings.

Financial guarantee contracts:

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the company are those contracts that require a payment to
be made to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to make a
payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Financial guarantee contracts
are recognised initially as a liability at fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequently, the liability is measured at the higher of
the amount of loss allowance determined as per impairment requirements of Ind AS 109 and the
amount recognised less cumulative amortisation.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled
or expired. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender o
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such arf;
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exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of
a new Hability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of
. profit or loss.

Reclassification of financial assets

o The company determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition. After
initial recognition, no reclassification is made for financial assets which are equity instruments and
financial liabilities. For financial assets which are debt instruments, a reclassification is made only if
there is a change in the business model for managing those assets. Changes to the business model are
expected to be infrequent. The company’s senior management determines change in the business
model as a result of external or internal changes which are significant to the company’s operations.
Such changes are evident to external parties. A change in the business model occurs when the
company either begins or ceases to perform an activity that is significant to its operations. If the

_company reclassifies financial assets, it applies the reclassification prospectively from the
reclassification date which is the first day of the immediately next reporting period following the
change in business model. The Company does not restate any previously recognised gains, losses
(including impairment gains or losses) or interest,"

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the consolidated
‘balance sheetifthereis a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there
Is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Derivative financial instruments

The Company uses derivative financial instruments, such as forward currency contracts and interest
rate swaps, to hedge its foreign currency risks, interest rate risks and commodity price risks,
respectively. Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date on
which a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair value. Derivatives
are carried as financial assets when the fair value is positive and as financial liabilities when the fair
value is negative, Any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of derivatives are taken
- directly to profit or loss.

n. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term
deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value,

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short- i
term deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integrao@8li )
part of t[ge Company’s cash management.
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0. Fair value measurement

The Company measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance sheet
date. .

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is
based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place
either:

i) In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
if) in the absence of o principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or fiabifity

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic
best interest,

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another
market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs
and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that
Is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — Quoted {unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable

Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservabie

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the
Company determines whether transfers have oceurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing
categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement asa
whole) at the end of each reporting period.”

The Company determines the policies and procedures for both recurring fair value measurement, such
as derivative instruments and unguoted financial assets measured at fair value, and for non-recurring
measurement, such as assets held for distribution in discontinued operations. The Valuation
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Committee comprises of the head of the investment properties segment, heads of the Company’s
internal mergers and acquisitions team, the head of the risk management department, financial

controllers and chief finance officer.

External valuers are involved for valuation of significant assets, such as properties and unguoted
financial assets, and significant liabilities, such as contingent consideration. Selection criteria include
market knowledge, reputation, independence and whether professional standards are maintained.
Valuers are normally rotated every three years.

At each reporting date, the Company analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabilities
which are required to be remeasured or re-assessed as per the Company’s accounting policies. For
this analysis, the Company verifies the major inputs applied in the latest valuation by agreeing the
information in the valuation computation to contracts and other relevant documents.

The Company, in ¢conjunction with the Company’s external valuers, also compares the change in the
fair value of each asset and liability with relevant external sources to determine whether the change
is reasonable.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liahilities
on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the ievel of the fair
value hierarchy as explained above.

This note summarises accounting policy for fair value.

p. Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Company and the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being made.
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, taking into account
contractually defined terms of payment and excluding taxes or duties collected on behalf of the
government, The Company has concluded that it is the principal in all of its revenue arrangements
since it is the primary obligor in all the revenue arrangements as it has pricing latitude and is also
exposed to inventory and credit risks.

Sales tax/ value added tax {VAT) is not received by the Company on its own account. Rather, it is tax
collected on value added to the com madity by the seller on behalf of the government. Accordingly, it
is excluded from revenue.

The specific recognition criteria described below must also be met before revenue is recognised.

i. Income from management / technical services is recognised as per the terms of the agreement on
the basis of services rendered.

ii. On disposal of current investments, the difference between its carrying amourtt and net disposal
proceeds is charged or credited to the statement of profit and loss. Such income is included under
the head ‘other operating income’ for companies engaged in investing activities and under the
‘other income’ for other companies in the statement of profit and foss.

ifi. [nsurance claim is recognised on acceptance of the claims by the insurance company.,
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Revenue earned in excess of billings has been included under ‘other assets’ as unbilted revenue and
biflings in excess of revenue has been disclosed under ‘other liabilities’ as unearned revenue.

Expenditure including pre-operative and other incidenta! expenses incurred by the Group on
projects that are in the process of commissioning, being recoverable from the respective SPVs /
subsidiaries incorporated for carrying out these projects, are not charged to the statement of profit
and loss and are treated as advances to the respective entities.

The Company applied Ind AS 115 for the first time from April 1, 2018. ind AS 115 supersedes Ind AS
11 Construction Contracts and Ind AS 18 Revenue and it applies, with Himited exceptions, to all
revenue arising from contracts with customers, Ind AS 115 establishes a five- -step model to account
-~ for revenue arising from contracts with customers and requires that revenue be recognised at an
amount that reﬂects the consideration to which an entity expects to be entitled in exchange for
transferring goods or services to a customer.

In current financial year, Company does not have any revenue arising from contract with customers
and thus there is no impact on the financial statements of the company on account this new revenue
recognition standard.

interest income

For all debt mstruments measured either at amortised cost or at fair value through other
comprehensive income, interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR). EIR is the
rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts over the expected life of
the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of the
financial asset or to the amortised cost of a financial liability. When calculating the effective interest
rate, the Company estimates the expected cash flows by considering alt the contractual terms of the
financial instrument {for example, prepayment, extension, call and similar options) but does not
consider the expected credit losses. Interest income is included in finance income in the statement of
profit and loss,

Dividends

Revenue is recognised when the Company's right to receive the payment is esfablished, which is
generally when shareholders approve the dividend.

" . Taxes

Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax.
Current income tax

Currentincome taxis measured at the amount expected to be paid to the tax authorities in accordance
with the Income Tax Act, 1961

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from
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Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or
loss {either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in
correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCl or directly in equity, Management periodically
evafuates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax
. regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.”

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the fiability method on temporary differences between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting
date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

i) When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or
liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss

i) tn respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and interests in joint ventures, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences
can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future

_Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of
unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences,
and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

iii) When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the
time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit ar loss

iv) In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and interests in joint ventures, deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it
is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit
will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of
the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each
reporting date and are recagnised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits
will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.
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Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year
" when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss
{either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation
to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity
and the same taxation authority.

Tax benefits acquired as part of a business combination, but not satisfying the criteria for separate
recognition at that date, are recognised subsequently if new information about facts and
circumstances change. Acquired deferred tax benefits recognised within the measurement period
reduce goodwilt related to that acquisition if they result from new information obtained about facts
and circumstances existing at the acquisition date. If the carrying amount of goodwill is zero, any
remaining deferred tax benefits are recognised in OCI/ capital reserve depending on the principle
explained for bargain purchase gains. All other acquired tax benefits realised are recognised in profit
or loss.

r. Corporate Social Responsibility ('CSR') expenditure




3. Property, plant and equipment

Amount in INR

Particulars Ha_%wwmﬂ%ﬁ _uﬂ_ﬁ_ww_mm & | Office equipment Vehicles w_mMH_nw_ Building Total
Cost
Deemed cost as at 2,40,00,916 40,81,748 19,43,282 14,14,557 | 5,41,207 65,81,162 3,85,62,872
01.04.2018 :
Additions - - 1,70.868 - - Q- 1,70,868
Disposals - 16,79,657 - - - i16,79,657
Adijustments - - - - - -
As at 31,03.2019 2,40,00,916 24,02,091 21,114,150 14,14 557 | 5,41,207 65,811,162 3,70,54,084
Additions - - 4,832,973 - - 4,83,973
Disposals - 59,111 1,34,640 2,33,751
As at 31.03.2020 2,40,00,916 24,022,091 24,99,012 12,79,917 | 5,41,207 65,81,162 3.73,04,.306
Depreciation
As at 01.04.2018 2,40,00,915 21,05,822 8,22.238 4,15,498 1,66,144 65,51,070 3,40,61,688
Charge for the year .- 3.50,540 4,23,.820 4,00,349 55,916 30,091 12,61,3115
Disposals - 16,79,650 - - . 16,79,650
As at 31.03.2019 2,40,00,915 7, 77,112 12,46,058 8,15,847 | 2,22 060 65,81,161 3,36,43,153
Charge for the period - 3,28.424 4,44,478 4.08,789 55,915 - 12,37,605
Disposals - 99,110 1,14.716 2,13,826
As at 31.03.2020 2,40,00,915 11,005,536 15,91,426 11,09,920 | 2.77.974 65,81,161 3,46,66,932
Net block
As at 31.03.2020 1 12,96,556 9,007,587 1,69,997 | 2,63,233 1 26,37,374
As at 31.03.2019 1 16,24.,979 8,68,093 5,98,710 | 3,19,147 1 34,110,931




4. Investment Property under construction
Amounts in INR

. : . Particulars : . . Total
Opening balance at 1 April 2018 5,72,01,92,293
Add: Additions during the year 55,21,94 899
6,31,23,87,192
59,44,54,041
a balance at 31st March 2020 6,90,68,41,233
Depreciation and impairment
Opening balance at 1 April 2018 -
Depreciation hy
Closing balance at 31 March 2019 -
Depreciation iy
Closing balance at 31st March 2020 oy
Net Block -
'at 3ist March 2020 6,90,68,41,23%"
at 31st March 2019 . 6,31,23,87,192

The Company's investment properties under sonstruction consist of Lands admeasuring 1325.369 Acres in Krishnagiri District, Tamilnadu.
As at 31st March 2020(1325.369 Acres As at 31 March 2019), the fair values of the properties are INR 741.73 Cr and INR 685.47 Cr
respectively, These vaiuations are based on valuations performed by M. Nagesh Reddy B.E, F.I.V, (an accredited independent valuer and
Chartered Surveyors is specialist in valuing these types of investment properties) as on 31st March 2020. A valuation model in accordance
with that recommended by the International Valuation Standards Committee has been applied. The lands admeasuring to 687 Ac are
mertgaged to tIC and 295 Ac are mertgaged te Vijay Bank Limited towards security against loans taken by Holding company GMR
Ifnrastructure Limited. To that extent the company has restrictions on the realisability of its investment properties.

Following details of Investment property fair value is based on the fair valuation report prepared by M. Nagesh Reddy B.E, F.I.V.

Reconciliation of fair value

Investment properties

Lands
INR Crore
Opening halance as at 1 April 2019 685.47
Fair value difference 56.26
Purchases -
Closing balance as at 31st March 2020 741.73

Valuation technique used - .
Belting methed has been adopted for valuation that means by applying appropriate rate per Acre for each piot considering the factors such
as location, Location features, Size & shape of the land/plot availability, Topography, Sail Conditions, encumbrances, infrastructure, land
use requfations, Government iegislation etc. and finally average out rate per acre for entire piece of land.

'|5. Intangible Assets
Amounts in INR
Particulars ! Software i Total

Gross block :
As at 1.04.2018 1 28,188,448 28,118,448
Additions oo ' - -
Disposals : -
As at 31.03.2019 28,18,448 : 28,18.448
Additions . - -
Disposals -
As at 31.03.2020 . 28,18.,448 28.18.448
Amortization :
As at 1.04,2018 25.75.098 1 25,75,098
Charae for the vear . 1.37.915 1,37.915
Disposals ) - -
As at 31.03.2019 ] 27,13,013 27,13,013
Charge for the period 61,300 : 61,300
Disposals ' - -
As at 31.03.2020 : 27.74,313 27,74,.313
Net block . -
As at 31.03.2020 44,135 44,135

As at 31.03.2019 . 1,05,435 1,05.435




6. Financial assets

Loains Amounts in INR
) Long Term . _ Short Term
31.Mar.20 | - 3i.Mar.19 .. 31.Mar.20 ' 31.Mar.i9

Carried at amortised cost : .

Security deposits
Unsecured, considered geod, to related parties

Unsecured, considered good, to other parties 25,69,100 24,40,730 . - -
Loans & advance to related parties 3 :
Unsecured, considered good ‘ - - 33,48,588 : 16,48,501
26,69,100 | 24,40,730 | 33,48,088 | 16,48,501
7. Other Non-Current assets
Amounts in INR
Long Term o Short Term _
31.Mar.20 | 31.Mar.19 31.Mar.20 | - 331,Mar.19
Advances recaverable in cash or kinds 93,337 1,22,166
Prepaid expenses - - 13,06,332 | 13,53,146
Capital Advance 37,74,680 66,09,395 i
Balance with statutory / government Authorities 10,24,39,941 - - 9,19,12,676
10,62,14,621 66,09,395 13,99,669 9,33,87,988
8. Current Tax :
; Amounts in INR
. Long Term Short Term
31.Mar,20 | 31.Mar.19 31.Mar,20 | 31.Mar.1
Advance income tax (net of provision) 4,87,598 52,292 - -
4.87,598 | 52,292 . -
Deferred Tax : :
Mat Credit 2,77,187 2,77,187
2,77,187 2,77,187 - -
7,64,785 3,29,479 - -
9, 'Cash and Cash Equivaient
Amounts in INR
Particulars 3i.Mar.20 | 31.Mar.19
Cash and cash equivalents 5
-Cash on hand 51,939 2,51,592
-Balances with Banks
-In current accounts 5,32,27,317 | 13,811,967
Total 5,32,79,256 16,33,559




10. Share Capital

Amocunts in INR

S __ _Particulars | 33Mar20 " " 31.Mar19

Authorised : ;

15,10,00,600 (2019:15,10,00,000) Equity Shares of Rs.10 {2019: Rs.10) each 1,51,00,00,DQO 1,51,00,00,000

! 1,51,00,00.000 i 1,51,00,00,000

Issued ;

11,75,6C,000 (2019: 11,75,00,000) Equity Shares of Rs.10 (2019: Rs. 10) each |

fully paid up 1,17,50,00,000 | 1,17,50,00,000

Subscribed and Paid-up ; i

11,75,00,000 (2019: 11,75,00,000) Equity Shares of Rs.10 {(2019: Rs. 10) each

fully paid up 1,17,50,00,000 i 1,17,50,00,000
Total ! 1,37.50,00,000 :: 1,17,50,00,000

a. Reconciliation of Shares Outstanding at the beginning and end of the reporting year

Fquity Shares =~~~ — T — o “31.Mar.20
) : In Numbers?! Amounts in INR

At the beginning of the year 11,75,00,000 || 1,17,50,00,000
Issued during the period ) . - -
Outstanding at the end of the period 11,75,00,000 | 1,17,50,00,000
Equity Shares o . : 31.Mar.i9

In Numbersi: Amounts in INR
At the beginning of the vear 11,75,00,000 1,17,50,00,000
Issued during the period | - -
Outstanding at the end of the period ' 11,75,00,000 1,17,50,00,000

b. Terms/Rights Attached to aquity Shares
The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10 per share. Every member holding equity shares shall

have voting rights in proportion to his shares of the paid up equity share capital. In the event of liquidation of the Company, the
holders of equity shares would be entitied to receive remaining assets of the Company after distribution of ali preferential amounts.
The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholiders.

¢. Shares held b'y holding /ulitmate holding company fholding company and/or their subsidiaries/associates.
' o 31.Mar.20

Name of Shareholder T :
’ _No. of Shares held|| Amounts in INR

GMR Infrastructure Limited and its nominees, the immediate holding

company. : i
11,75,00,000 (201%: 11,75,00,000) Equity Shares of Rs.10 each fully paid up 11,75,00,000 1,17,50,00,000

31.Mar.19
' No. of Shares held ‘ Amounts in INR

Name of Shareholder

GMR Infrastructure Limited and its nominees, the immediate holding

company. ;
11,75,00,000 (2019: 11,75,00,000) Equity Shares of Rs.10 each fully paid up : 11,75,00,000 i 1,17,50,00,000

d. Details of Shareholders holding more tﬁan 5% of equity shares in the Company

31.Mar.20
" !No. of Shares held H % Holding in Class

Name of Shareholder

|Equity shares of Rs.10 each fully paid : -
GMR Infrastructure Limited, the immediate holding company and its nominees. . 11,75,00,000 i 100%

31.Mar.19
~No. of Shares held || % Holding in Class

Name of Shareholder

Equity shares of Rs.10 each fully paid : :
GMR Infrasiructure Limited, the immediate holding company and its nominees. 11,75,00,000 100%

As per records of the Company including its register of share holders/members and other declarations received from share holders
regarding beneficial interast, the above share holding represents both legal and baneficial ownership of shares.




11. Other Equity

Amount in INR

Particulars wu.._e_mbw:o:i
Surplus in the statement of profit and loss
QOpening batance -20,62,87 544 ‘ -17,29,03,673
Fair Valuation of corporatee Guaraniee -62,98,997 ° -62,83,014

-21,25,86,542 «17,91,86,687
Add: Proft/{loss) for the year -2,58,54,805 -2,71,00,857
Closing balance -23,84,41,347 -20,62,87,545
Equity component of financial liabi
Opening balance 18,15,68,508 18,15,68,508
Ad]ustment for the remova! of the inlercompany transactions - -
Closing balance 18,15,68,508 18,15,68,508
Total Other equity T 5e8 72839 | T2 AT 19,036 |
12 Financial liabilities - Borrowings {Amount in Rs.)}
o ) | Non - Current Current
Particulars 31.Mar.20 31.Mar.19 31.Mar.20 31.Mar.19

Unsecured borrowings

Dehentures
142 (2019: 142) 12% Cumulative Cptionally Convertible Debantures of Rs.10,00,000 {2018:
10,00,000) each.

Loans from related parties
Loans from group company (unsecur

14,20,00,000

14,20,00,000

v FORAL

Note:

12% Cumulative optionally convertible Debentures of Rs. 10 Lakhs Each #
12.25 % Loan from GMR Infrastructure Limited

11% Loan from Tambaram and Tindivaram Expresswayd Ltd *

12.25 % Loan from Haneyfiower Estates Private Limited

12.25% Loan from GMR Highways Limitecd**

12.25% loan from GMR Infrastructure Ltd.,

12.25% Loan from GMR SEZ & Port Holdings Limited

3,40,42,20,944 3,24,24,04,944 - -
. 354,62,20,944 ; 3,38,44,04,944 | e T — z
..31.Mar.20 33.Marao |77 3iMar2o | T 3iMarde

14,20,00,000
54.,44,51,113
2,00,85,00,000
1,89,50,000
67,07,53,831
15,84.66,000

14,20,00,000
54,44,51,113
2,00,85.00.000
1,87.00,000
67,07,53.831

31,00,000

3,54,62,20,944 |

__ 3,38,44.04,944 |

# The debentures are optionally convertible, at the option

shares at a valuation to be mutually agreed upon as per the valuation to be done by a reputed Chartered Accountant firm at the time of conversion. In case the option

by the debenture hoder, the Debentures shall be converted by the Company into Equity Shares on the expiry of the aforesaid period.

* 11% loan from Tambaram and Tindivaram Expressways Ltd. Along with the accrued interest has been coverted into new loan at the r
Hence, based on the board resolution of Tambaram and Tindivaram Expresswyas Ltd. loan has been classified as non curent on

is in the process of converting 12.25%
note 31 for further details.

of the debenture holders, at any time not exceeding 120 months (the term) from the date of issue of debentures into equity

s not exercised

ate 6% p.a for an additional period of one year,
the reporting date.

loan from GMR Highways limited along with the accrued interest has been converted into new loan for an period of 18




13. Financial liabilities - Trade payables

Amounts in INR

Particulars ! ‘31 March 2020 i 31 March 2019
Trade Pavable
- Micro, Small and Madium Enterprises - -
- Related parties - -
- Others 94,72,429 | 43,52,572
TOTAL 94,772,429 : 43,52,572
14, Financial Liabilities Amounts in INR
C : Non Current " Current .
_.31.Mar.20 [ 31.mar.19 31.Mar.20 _31.Mar.19 |
Other financial liabilities at amortised cost i :
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings * 86.60.97.350 ¢ - 1,92.58.622 52.85.70,919
Securitv devosits from Related Party : 1,45.00.00.000 :
Other pavables ! ; - - 1.29.03.92.167
Non trade pavable : - - 3.09.06.945 2.25.24.948
Current maturity on corporate Guarantee - - 50.44,956 50.46.820
H i
Total other financial liabilities 2:.31.60,97.350 ! - 5.52,10,523 i 1.84.65.34.854 |

Total financial liabilities

2.31,60.97.349.98 |

5.52.10,523 |

1.84,65.34.854 |

* 11% loan from Tambaram and Tindivaram Expressways Ltd. And 12.25% locan from GMR Highways limited has been converted into new loan

along with the interest accrued on the same. Hence, accrued in

reporting date,

terest on the above two loans has been classified as non-current on the

15, Other Liabilities

Amounts in INR

Non Current : i B Current
31.Mar.20 | 31.Mar.19 “31.Mar.20. | 31.Mar.19
Statutory liabilites ; ; 2,67,08,010 -3,14,07,541
Total - - 2,67,08,010; 3,14,07,941
16. Provisions
Amounts in INR
i Long-term : Short-term
31.Mar.20 | 31.Mar.19 | 31.Mar.20 | 31.Mar.i9
Provision for employee benefits . )
Provision for Compensated Absences 34,16,904 i 37,91,034 ¢ 9,24,421 ! 4,51,648
Provision for Gratuity 9,65,972 ¢ 6,69,958 | - -
Provision for other employee benefits ; : 55,446
Total 43,82,876 | 44,60,992 9.79,867 |




17 Other income
Amounts in INR

; Period Ended . Year Ended
.31,Mar.20 ‘ 31.Mar.19
Other income b ;
Provisions no longer required, written back o C - -
Interest - Others - - -
Other non-operating income N 63.13,861 _ 12,84,791
L 63,13,861 12,84,791

Amounts in INR

18. Emplovee Benefits Expense

Period Ended e Year Ended

31.Mar.20 | ~31.Mar.19
Salaries, waaes and bonus 24.18,180 | 48,28.958
Contribution to provident and other funds - 79,267 - ©1,96,390
Gratuity expenses L - 42,642
Staff welfare expenses f 21,105 1,07 856

25,18,552 - 51,75,846




20. Other expenses
Amounts in INR

Year Ended 4 Year Ended
31.Mar.20 i . .31.Mar.19

'Rates and taxes 13,83,318 | 25,19,324"
{Advertising and sales promotion 15,078 ! 13,52,306

: Communication costs 3 2,983 31,040
IPrinting and stationery 1 6,014 | 99,757 |
i Director Sitting fees : 60,000 | 75.000
'Books and periodicals - 23,123 !
Training Expenses : 20,732 -
Recruitment expenses ‘ 9,750 ' -
Membership and subscriptions | 60,210 1,14,200 !
Social welfare expenses : 8,896,822 9,30,073
Brokerage expenses - 1,23,88,153
tand Development Charges - 30,41,262
Office Maintenance 2,46,500 | 1,03,785 |
Bank Charges . 303 19,864
Board meeting expenses 3,742 5,500 .
i Travelling and Conveyance ' 2.66,399 | 7.53,739 |
. Legal and Professional fees : 2,41.65,717 . 13,55,142 ¢
| Pavments to Auditors: 3

" - Audit Fee _ © 2.01,548 | 2,84,623
i Misc Expenses : - 7,650
: Total : 2,73,32,116 2,31,04,542

Amounts in INR

Year Ended Year Ended :

31.Mar.20 31.Mar.19 o
jPayment to Auditors (Included in other expenses
.above)
'As Auditor : _ ;
LAudit fee . : 2,00.000 . 2.00,000 ;
[ Tax audit fee '
In other capacity
- Greup reporting
| Other services _ :
I-Reimbursement of expenses : 1,548 84,623 °

2,01,548 : 2.84.623
19. Financiaf Charges
| Year Ended . - Year Ended

31.Mar.20 31i.Mar.19

Interest others ‘ 22,950,398

Total _ 22.90,398




21. Earnings Per Share (EPS)

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the parent by the weighted average number of Equity

shares cutstanding during the vear. ’
Dituted EPS amounts are caiculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity holders of the parent (after adjusting for interest on the convertible
preference shares) by the weighted average number of Eguity shares outstanding during the year pius the weighted average number of Equity shares that

The following refiects the income and share data used in the basic and diiuted EPS computations:
Amounts in INR

{ Particulars - ) | 31.Mar.20 . 31.Mar.19______i
‘Profit attributable to equity holders of the parent '

Continuing operations

Discontinued operation
Profit attributable to equity holders of the parent for basic earnings i - - |
Interest on convertible preference shares 3 - ;
Profit attributable to equity holders of the parent adjusted for the effect of dilution - -

-2,58,54,805 . -2,71,00,857

;Weighted Average number of equity shares used for computing Earning Per Share 11,75,00,000 11,75,00,00

i {Basic)
Effect of dilution: ; _

Convertible preference shares ) : | -

Weighted average number of Equity shares adjusted for the effect of dilution * 11,75,00,000 ; 11,75,00,000 !
‘Earning Per Share (Basic) (Rs) ' 0.22 | 0.23
(Earning Per Share (Diluted) (Rs) : -0.22 -0.23

iFace value per share (Rs) : 10 ; 10




22, Significant accounting judgements. estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the company’s financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of
contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment
to the carrying ameunt of assets or fiabilities affected in future periods.

ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS

The key assumptions concerning the future and cther key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a-
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next finzncial year, are
described below. The company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the consolidated financial
statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market
changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when
they occur. ’ .
Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists,
or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) net selling price and its value in use. The recoverable
amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those
from other assets or Company's assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is
considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset. In determining net selling price, recent market transactions are taken into account, if available. If
no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used,

Defined benefit plans (gratuity benefits)

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuity obligation are determined using actuarial
valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These
include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and moertality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the
valuation and its long-term nature, a defined bensfit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. Al assumptions
are reviewed at each reparting date.

The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate for plans operated in India,
the management considers the interest rates of government bonds in currencies consistent with the currencies of the post-
employment benefit obligation. '

- The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables for the specific countries. Those mortality tables tend to change only
at interval in response to demographic changes. Future salary increases and gratuity increases are based on expected future inflation
rates for the respective countries. '

Further details about gratuity obligations are given in Note 22.

Fair value measurement of financial instruments
When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based on quoted

prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques including the DCF model. The inputs to these models
are taken from observabie markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing
fair values. Judgements include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumption
these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments.




23. Gratuity and other post-employment benefit plans

a) Defined Contributien Plans :
The Company’s Contribution to Pravident and Pension Fund charged to Investment properties are as follows :
: Amount in INR

Particulars 2019-20 2018-19
Provident and pension fund 5,78,600 £,38,559
Totat 5,78,600 8,328,559

b} Defined Benefit Plan - Gratuity as per Actuarial valuation as at March 31, 2020 [Funded]
Amount in INR

Particulars 2019-20 2018-19

i) Change in defined benefit obilgation

Opening defined beneft obligation 34,95,230 63,54,616
Current Service Cost 2,95,357 4,01,902
Interest cast 2,60,563 4,69,512
Past Service Cast - -

Acquisition Cost/(Credit) - (34,86,066)
Actuarial less / {(gain) on obligations - experience . {3,590 1,06,191
Benefits paid : {1,33,546) (3,51,025)
Closing defined benefit obligation 3%,14,010 34,95,230

i) Change in fair value of plan assets;

Fair value of Plan Assets at the beginning of the vear 28,25,272 30,15,190
Acquisition adjustment - -

Interest income on plan assets 2,10,392 2,16,650
Return on ptan assets greater /(lesser) than discount rate 26,274 (77,504}
Contributions by employer . 19,646 21,961
Benafits paid {1,33.546) {3,51,025)
Closing fair value of plan assets . 29,48,038 28,25,272

i) Amount Recegnized in the Balance Sheet

Present Value of Obligation as at year end ., 39,14,018 34,995,230
Fair Value of plan assets at year end 29,48,038 28,25,272
Funded status 9,65,972 6,694,958
Less ; Asset ceiling adjustment - i
Net defined benefit asset/ (liability} recognized 9,65,972 6,69,958

iv) Expenses recognised during the period
In Investment properties

Current Service Cost 2,95,357 4,01,902
Net interest on net defined benefit liability / (asset) 2,60,563 2,52,962
’ 5,55,920 6,54,864

In Investment properties

Actuarial {gain}/loss on defined benefit obligation - Experience Adjustments (3,590 1,086,191
Actuarial changes arising from changes in demographic assumptions )

Actuarial changes arising from changes in financial assumgtions

Return on plan assets {greater)/less than discount rate i 26,274 77,504
22,680 1,83,685
Total expense . 5,78,600 8,38,559

v} The major category of plan assets as a percentage of the fair value of total plan assets are as follows:

Investment with Insurer managed funds 100% 100%

vi} Principal actuarial assumptions used

Discount rate {p.a.) 7.60% 7.60%
Expected rate of return on plan assets {p.a.) 7.60% 7.60%
Expected rate of increase in salary 6.00% 6.00%
Attritlon Rate 5.00% 5.00%
Retirement Age 60 Years 60 Years

¢) Leave Encashment
Liability towards Leave Encashment based on Actuarial valuation amounts to Rs, 43,41,325 as 2t March 31, 2020 [March 31, 2019: Rs, 42,42,282/-).




24 Commitments and Contingencies

I Continaent Liabilities

The Company has a contingent lability towards its lands piedged against the loan availed by Its holding company, GMR Infrastructure Limited as below as
an 31st March 2020:

31 March, 2020 31 March, 2019
Loan availed from No. of Acres Amount mm No. of Acres Amount .m:
pledged loan {Rs. in pledged loan {Rs. in
crores) crores}

LiC * 687 85.71 687 85.71
Bank of Baroda (Vijaya Bank) 235 171.61 295 171.61
DIAL 0 - 293 115.36
Total 982 257.32 1,275 376.68

*olm_:m:«.w:>QmmEmn_mmamolowsm_.:c_._:nom»w.Hmon_‘omm borrowings, later 30 acres released and accerdingly the contingent liability of the company
has been reduced.

IT Commitments Amounts in INR

31 March, 31 March,

: 2020 2019
a,Estimated amount of Centracts remaining to be executed on Capital Account and not provided for (Net of 4,10,48,088 1,75,11,837
Advances) .




25,
(A}
(a)

(b}

(3]

Related Partv transactions

Names of Related parties and nature of related party relationships

Fellow Subdiaries

Holding company

Kev management personnel

GMR Tambaram Tindivanam Expressway Limited (GTTEL)

Advika Properties Private Limited (APPL}

Aklima Properties Private Limited (Aklima)

Amartva Properties Private Limited {Amartya)

Asteria Real Estates Private Limited (AREPL)

Deepesh Properties Private Limited {DPPL)

Dhruvi Securities Limited (Dhruvi)

Eila Properties Private Limited (EPPL}

Geokno India Private Limited(Geokno)

GMR Aero Structure Limited (GASL}

GMR Corporate Affairs Private Limited {GCAPL)

GMR Highways Private Limited (GHPL)

GMR Hospitality & Retail Limited (GHRL)

GMR Hvderabad Viiavawada Expressway Private Limited {GHVEPL)
GMR Infra Services Limited (GISL)

GMR Kamalanaa Energy Limited (GKEL)

GMR Highways Limited (GHWI.) {GMR Kishangarh Udaipur Ahmedabad
Expressway Private Limited (GKUAEPL)is merged with GHWL)

GMR Pochanapalli Expressway Limited {(GPEL)
GMR Power Corparation Ltd (GPCL)

GMR Raiamundhry Energy Ltd {GREL)

GMR SEZ & Port Holdinas Limited (GSPHL)
GMR Tuni Anakapalli Expressway Limited (GTAEL}
GMR Varalakshmi Foundation GMRYF

Idika Properties Private Limited (IPPL)
Kakinada SEZ Limited (KSL)

Lakshmipriva Properties Private Limited (LPPL)
Nadira Properties Private Limited (NPPL)
Padmapriva Properties Private Limited (PPPL)
Prakalpa Properties Private Limited (Prakalpa)
Radhapriva Properties Private Limited (RPPL)
Raxa Security Services Limited {RSSL}Y
Shreyadita Properties Private Limited (SPPL)
Sreepa properties Private Limited (Sreepa)

GMR Infrastructure Limited
GMR Enterprise Private Limited

Mr. Jagadeeswara Rac M - Manaqer
Mr. Govind Bhat Padvana - Chief Financial Officer
Mr. Sanjay Kumar Jain - Company Secretary




(B)

Summary of transactions with the above related

parties is as follows:

Particulars

As at March 31, 2020

As at March 31, 2019;

|) Inter Corporate Loan taken

Enterprises that control the Company — GIL 15,84,66,000! 13,33,41,000:

Feliow subsidiary - GHWL - - 72,40,00,000:
Feliow subsidiary — HFEPL 72,00,000 1,98,00,000:
Fellow subsidiary — GSPHL 6,14,00,000 -

i1} Refund of Inter Corporate Loan ] ] o
Enterprises that control the Company — GIL - 17,72,30,887°
Fellow subsidiary — GTTEPL - -
Feliow subsidiary — Dhruvi o -

Feliow subsidiary - PPPL - =i . -

i Fellow subsidiary — GSPHPL 5,83,00,000° 37,00,000!
i Fellow subsidiary - GASL - ] -
: Fellow subsidiary -~ GKUAEL 7 - ..5,32,46,169
Fellow subsidiary — HFEPL 69,50,000 11,00,000
m) Security Charges paid to ; : '
Fellow subsidiary - RSSL ) 32,39,045: 35,34,663

jvi} Interest on 12% { previous year : 12%) ‘
. iCumulative Optionally Convertible Debentures .
:Enterprises that control the Company — GIL 1,70,86,685 1,70,40,000§

lvi} Interest on Inter Corporate Loan

" Feflow subsidiary - PPPL

:Fellow subsidiary — GTTEPL

22,09,35,000

iFellow subsidiary — Dhruvi

22,15,40,301

{Fellow subsidiary — GSPHPL 21,21,935! 1,111,760
Fellow subsidiary - GASL - -
Enterprises that control the Company — GIL . 7.62,23,524 5,47,61,535.
Fellow subsidiary - GHWL 8,23,82,460 5,22,93,930!
Fellow subsidiary - HFEPL ~ 19,03,919' 5,22,018:
ivi} Annual License Fee for trade license rights | :
Enterprises that control the Company - GHPL - 1,120
vii) Reimbursement of Expenses to: :

|Fellow subsidiary - CPPL 5,000 -
Fellow subsidiary — APPL 585 e
Fellow subsidiary — GMRVF 9,06,214: 8,38,253
Fellow subsidiary ~ RPPL 1,600 1,31,27,716
fEnterprises that control the Company - GIL 64,31,778 12,87,025.
iFellow subsidiary — GSPHPL - 30,254;
_1}_3_]]0\# subsidiary-GCAPL 2,89,100 12, 681
:Fellow subsidiary-GHRL - 22,125
‘Fellow subsidiary - Amartya 31 -
;_\( ) Reimbursement of Expenses by: -

‘Fellow subsidiary — DPPL = 1,668
Fellow subsidiary - HFEPL - 5,59,799!
i_E_eIIOW subsidiary - PPPL ] - 2,36,741
:Enterprises that control the Company - GIL 3,114,002 53,21%
Fellow subsidiary - GSPHPL - 5,205
Fellow subsidiary -~ GREL - 9,48,777
‘Fellow subsidiary — NPPL - 370:
Fellow subsidiary ~ AREPL - 1,468:
Fellow subsidiary - GISL - 3,900
:Fellow subsidiary — APPL - 4,134!
iFeilow subsidiary ~ Aklima - 2,834
‘Fellow subsidiary - Amartya - 1,334,
Fellcw subsidiary — EPPL - 4,750
‘Fellow subsidiary — LPPL - 8,800.
iFellow subsidiary - IPPL - 668
;Fellow subsidiary - Prakalpa - 300G
| Fellow subsidiary ~ SPPL - 2434
iFellow subsidiary — Sreepa - 2,800

Xy Security deposit received to :

| Fellow subsidiary - RSSL

1,45,00.00,000

.xi) Refund of Security deposit received to :

. Feliow subsidiary - RSSL

43,75,31,905

| Relatives of Director - B Rammadeavi

2,01,000

| xii) Interest on Securltv deposit :

13,06,21,328

14,84,12,756/ &




(C)

Particulars

1) Allotment of Equity Share Capital _

Qutstanding Balances at the year-end :

As at March 31, 2020

As at March 31, 2019’

1,17,50,06,000

Holding Company — GIL | 1,17.50,00.000

i} 12% Cumulative Optionally Convertible Debentures ;

Holding Company ~ GIL, i i 14,20,00,000° 14,20,00,000'

iif) Interest due on 12% (Previous year: 12%) Cumulative Optionalty :
Convertible Debentures ' S :

Holding Company - GiL. ) 1,706,40,000 -1,70,40,000;

- :iv) Inter Corporate Loan takeln' / Security deposit

i Fellow subsidiary — GTTEPL

. 2,00,85,00,000

2,00,85,00,000

Fellow subsidiary - GHWL 67,07,53,831¢ 67,07,53,831
Fellow subsidiary - HFEPL 1,89,50,060: 1,87,60,000
Holding Company — GIL 76,29,17,113: 54,44,51,113:
.Fellow subsidiary — GSPHPL 31,00,000 -
Fellow subsidiary — RSSL 4,359,601 -
v) Interest dae on Infer Corporate Loan
Fellow subsidiary — GTTEPL 60,36,06,803 40,42,20,532:
-Fellow subsidiary - GHWL - 12,74,37,307. 4,67,10,704:
Helding Company — GIL 13,50,53,240 6,01,88,766!
Fellow subsidiary — FIFEPL 21,24,443 ¢ 4,10,917,
Fellow subsidiary — GSPHPL ] 64,580 !
‘Fellow subsidiary — Padmapriya - i -
vi) Rental deposit =~ .
Relatives of Director - B Rammadevi ) ) - -
vii} Debtors / Receivable : : ;
Holding Company - GIL . . ; 6,00,830. 6,76,195;
Fellow subsidiary - PPPL ) - -
Feilow subsidiary — Gegkno e 498,142 4,98,142!
Fellow subsidiary-GHPL : . - 16,305
Fellow subsidiary-GPCL : - 543
Fellow subsidiary-GSPHL 17.99,381: -
i Fellow subsidiary-GCAPL - 6,681
Fellow subsidiery-GREL 948,777 48,777
jviii) Creditors / payable N | ‘ )
‘Fellow subsidiary - RSSL o - 1,29,03.,92,166
iviii) Security Deposit received o
iFellow subsidiary - RSSL 1,45,00,00,000

rtered o

m Aceountants J-




26

27

Fair values
The carrying amount of all financial assets and liabilities (except for those instruments carried at fair value) appearing in the financial statements is reasonable
anoroximation of fair values.

Financial risk management obiectives and policies

The Company’s principal financial liabilities comprise loans and borrowings, trade and other payables. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the
Company’s operations, The Company's principal financial assets include loans, trade and other receivables, and cash and cash equivalents that derive directly from its
operations.

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’'s senior management oversees the management of these risks. Company’s senior
management ensures that the Company’s financial risk activities are governed by appropriate policies and procedures and that financial risks are identified, measured and
managed in accordance with the Company’s policies and risk objectives. All derivative activities for risk management purposes are carried out by specizlist teams that have
the appropriate skills, experience and supervision. It is the Company’s policy that no trading in derivatives for speculative purposes may be undertaken. The Board of
Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks, which are summarised below.

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financia! instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three types
of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk, such as equity price risk, Financial instruments affected by market risk include loans and borrowings, deposits,
and derivative financial instruments.

The sensitivity analvses in the following sections relate to the position as at 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2019.

The analyses exclude the impact of movements in market variables on: the carrying values of gratuity and other post-retirement obligations, provisions.
The following assumptions have been made in caleulating the sensitivity analyses: )
» The sensitivity of the relevant profit or Joss item is the effect of the assumed changes in respective market risks. This is based on the financial assets and financial-
liabilities held at 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2019.

Interest rate risk : .

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Company does
not have fluctuating interest rate borrowings, thus company does not have any interest rate risk.




28 Canital management

For the purpese of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, and all other equity reserves attributable to the
equity holders of the parent. The primary objective of the Company's capital management is fo maximise the sharcholder value.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the requirements of the
financial covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the dividend payment to sharehalders, return capital
to shareholders or issue new shares. The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is total debt divided by total capital plus total

debt.
Amount in
INR
At 21 March 2020 At 31 March 2019
Borrowinas 3,54,62,20,944 3,38,44,04,944
Total debt b 354 62.20.9441 3 38 44.04.944/

Capital Comnonents
share Canital

Ctber eauiry

Tatal Canital

Canital and net deht

lGearing ratio (%)

1.17.50.00.000

1.17.50.0C.000

-5.68.72.839 -2.47.19.036

1.11.81.27.161 1.15.02.80.964

e A BB A3 AR IO8 A 53 46 85 908/
Z6% Z5%

No changes were made in the objectives

, policies or processes for managing capitai during the years ended 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2019,




29, Effective tax reco

Income tax expenses in the statement of profit and loss consist of the following:

Year ended Year ended
31.Mar.20 31i.Mar.19

Tax expenses '
Current tax . - -
Deferred tax - -
Total taxes - -
Effective Tax Reconciliation for the year ended March 31, 2019 -
{Amount in Rupees , unless otherwise stated)

) Year ended Year ended
Income tax 31.Mar.20 31.Mar.19
Accounting profit before tax -2,58,27,205 -2,70,04,487
Tax rate 25.75% 25.75%
Tax at the applicable tax rate of 25.75% (March 31, 2019: 25.75%) (66,50,505} " (69,53,655)
Deferred tax** 66,50,505 659,53,655
At the effective income tax rate 0 0
Total tax expense reported in the statement of profit and loss 27,600 (1]

**Deferred tax asset has not been recognized on brought forward lesses as there is no probability/convincing or other
evidence that sufficient taxable profits will be available against which DTA will be adjusted.

30. The Company has assessed the possible effects that may arise from the COVID-19 pandemic on the business. Under the
operational guidelines announced by the State Government, the company has obtained necessary approvals and commenced its
operations gradually from 11th May 2020. As on the current date, based on the assessment, the Company has conciuded that
the impact of COVID - 19 pandemic is not material on the carrying value of the assets of the business. Due to the nature of the
pandemic and the resultant operational guidelines that may be announced by the governments in future, the Company will
continue to monitor the developments to identify significant impact, if any in the future period

31, 12.25% Loan taken from GMR Highways amocunting to Rs.67.07 Cr along with accrued inferest of Rs. 12.74 Cr will be
matured in the month of august 2020. However, Based on the mutual consent of the both companies principle along with the
accrued interest has been converted into a naew loan for an additional period of 18 months subject to approval from board of
GMR Highways limited. Hence, based on the same this loan has been classified as non-current, '

32.As on the reporting date, Current liabilities are more than current assets by Rs. 3.43 Cr. Howaver, management is expecting
that the additional funds required to meet the excess liabilities will be supported by its parent company and considering the
business plan of the company i.e. infrastructure development which has a high growth potential in future which will generate
required revenues,




